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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT G o)
oy £t L] Fa

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS G370 B2, o

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,

Piaintiff,

RYAN D, EVANS AND
PAUL A. GIANAMORE

MAGISTRATE Jupgg BOBRICK

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

Plaintiff, Securities and Exchange Commission (*Plaintiff” or “Commission™), alleges the

following:

NATURE OF THE COMPLAINT

1. From in or about December 1999 to in or about August 2000, Paul A. Gianamore
(“Gianamore™), then a Credit Suisse First Boston Financial Analyst, tipped his friend Ryan D.
Evans (“Evans”) with material, nonpublic information regarding several publicly traded
companies. Evans then fraded in the securities of these companies while in possession of this
information. Specifically, during the relevant time period, Credit Suisse First Boston’s Chicago

office (“CSFB Chicago™) acted as a financial advisor to one of the parties of at least four merger
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or acquisition transactions. Through his employment at CSFB Chicago, Gianamore obtained
nonpublic information about the mergers and acquisitions in issue before they were publicly
announced. He then tipped Evans with the inside information. While in possession of this
information, Evans purchased shares in companies shortly before an announcement of the merger
or acquisition. In each case, Evans sold his shares shortly after the public announcement of the
merger or acquisition, making approximately $243,667.17 from these four trades.

2. Defendants Evans and Gianamore (collectively “Defendants™) directly and
indirectly, have engaged and, unless enjoined, will continue to engage in acts, practices and
courses of business which constitute and will constitute violations of Sections 10(b) and 14(e) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) [15 U.S.C. §78j(b) and §78n(e)] and
Rules 10b-5 and 14e-3 [17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5 and §240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder.

3. Plaintiff brings this action to enjoin such acts, practices and courses of business,
and for other equitable relief, pursuant to Sections 21(d), 21(e) and 21 A of the Exchange Act [15
U.S.C. §§78u(d),78u(e) and 78u-1(a}].

JURISDICTION

4. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 21 and 27 of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§78u and 78aa].

5. Defendants will, directly and indirectly, unless enjoined, have the opportunity to
engage in the acts, practices and courses of business set forth in this Complaint and in acts,
practices and courses of business of similar purport and object.

6. The acts, practices and courses of business constituting the violations herein have
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occurred within the jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Illinois and elsewhere. |

7. Defendants, directly and indirectly, have made use of the means and
instrumentalities of interstate commerce and of the mails in connection with the acts, practices
and courses of business alleged herein within the jurisdiction of the Northern District of Illinois

and elsewhere.

THE DEFENDANTS

8. At all times relevant herein, Defendant Evans, who is 24 years old, lived in or
near Chicago, Illinois. At all times relevant herein, Defendant Evans was employed as a
financial analyst at dotspot, inc. (“dotspot™), a wholly owned subsidiary of divine interVentures,
inc., in Chicago, Illinois.

9, At all times relevant herein, Defendant Gianamore, who is 24 years old, lived in
or near the Chicago metropolitan area. At all relevant times, Gianamore worked as a financial
analyst at Credit Suisse First Boston (“CSFB”). He was in the Chicago office from the fall of
1999 until October 15, 2000. He worked in the CSFB San Francisco office from October 15,
2000 until his resignation on April 27, 2001.

ENTITIES INVOLVED

10.  Jostens Inc. (“Jostens™), is a marketer of commemorative school products and

services. Jostens is headquartered in Minneapolis, Minnesota. On or about December 28, 1999,
it was publicly announced that Jostens would be merged into a company controlled by

Investcorp., a global investment group, and certain other international co-investors under a
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definitive agreement. Before its merger with Investcorp., Jostens’s shares traded on the New
York Stock Exchange.

11. Charter plc (“Charter™), is an industrial group that manufactures rail track,

working environment and welding consumable equipment, as well as air and gas handling
equipment. Charter maintains operations in Europe, North America, South America, and in the
Asia/Pacific region. On or about April 26, 2000, Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc. (“Lincoln
Electric™), a maker of electric motors and welding products, publicly announced its agreement to
buy Charter. Charter’s shares trade on the London Stock Exchange.

12. Hussmann International, Inc. (“Hussman’), manufactures merchandise and

commercial refrigeration systems for the global food industry. Hussmann is located outside St.
Louis, Missouri. On or about May 12, 2000, it was publicly announced that Ingersoil-Rand
Company (“Ingersoll-Rand”) intended to acquire Hussmann. Before its acquisition by Ingersoll-
Rand, Hussmann’s shares traded on the New York Stock Exchange.

13.  Burns International Services Corporation (“Burns”), provides physical security

and related services and is located in Chicago, Illinois. On or about August 3, 2000, Securitas
AB (“Securitas”) publicly announced that it would acquire Burns. Before its acquisition by

Securitas, Burns’s shares traded on the New York Stock Exchange.
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FACTS
L Background

14, During the relevant time period, CSFB Chicago was retained separately by,
among others, Jostens, Lincoln Electric, Hussmann and Burns regarding possible merger or
acquisition transactions.

15. At all times relevant herein, CSFB had written procedures prohibiting the misuse
of nonpublic information obtained through the course of employment at CSFB. These
procedures expressly stated that fraudulent misuse includes the “tipping” of such information to
anyone.

16. At all times relevant herein, Gianamore was aware of these procedures.

17.  Gianamore, in the course of his employment at CSFB, had possession of and
access to nonpublic information related to transactions in which CSFB acted as a financial
advisor.

18. Gianamore and Evans were close friends throughout the time of Gianamore’s
employment at CSFB. They had been friends for approximately four years, at least since they
were students together at DePaul University in Chicago, Illinois.

19.  Evans knew or had reason to know that Gianamore had access to and possessed
nonpublic information in the course of his employment at CSFB.

20.  Evans knew or had reason to know that it was improper for Gianamore to

communicate to Evans nonpublic information Gianamore obtained in the course of his
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employment.
II.  The Jostens Trade

21. On or about December 28, 1999, Jostens and Investcorp. issued a press release
announcing the execution of a merger agreement. Jostens stock closed on December 28, 1999 at
approximately $24.25 per share, up approximately 32.42% from its closing price on December
27, 1999.

22.  (CSFB advised Jostens in this transaction.

23.  Prior to the public announcement regarding the Jostens and Investcorp. merger,
Gianamore became aware of nonpublic information regarding the upcoming Jostens and
Investcorp. merger through the course of his employment at CSFB Chicago.

24.  Gianamore knew or had reason to know that the information regarding the Jostens
and Investcorp. merger was nonpublic,

25.  Prior to the public announcement regarding the Jostens and Investcorp. merger,
Gianamore communicated nonpublic information regarding the upcoming Jostens and
Investcorp. merger to Evans.

26.  While in possession of nonpublic information regarding the upcoming Jostens and
Investcorp. merger from Gianamore, on or about December 22, 1999, Evans bought
approximately 1,249 shares of Jostens at a price of approximately $17.4375 per share for a total

of approximately $21,787.44.



Case: 1:02-cv-00582 Document #: 1 Filed: 01/24/02 Page 7 of 17 PagelD #:7

N T

27. At or around this time, Evans knew or had reason to know that it was improper for
Gianamore to communicate nonpublic information regarding the upcoming Jostens and
Investcorp. merger to Evaﬁs.

28.  Following the public announcement regarding the Jostens and Investcorp. merger,
on or abouf December 28, 1999, Evans sold approximately 1,245 Jostens shares at a price of
approximately $23.875 per share for a total of approximately $29,71;5.3 8, realizing a profit of
approximately $7,927.94.

H1. The Charter Trade

29. On or about April 26, 2000, the Boards of Lincoln Electric and Charter publicly
announced that they had agreed to the terms of a recommended cash offer to be made by CSFB
on behalf of a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lincoln Electric, to acquire the entire issued and to be
issued share capital of Charter. Charter’s stock closed on April 26, 2000 at approximately 467.5
pence per share, up 224 pence or approximately 92%.

30.  CSFB advised Lincoln Electric in this transaction.

31.  Prior to the public announcement and after substantial steps had been taken to
commence the tender offer involving Lincoln Electric and Charter, Gianamore became aware of
nonpublic information regarding the upcoming Lincoln acquisition of Charter through the course
of his employment at CSFB Chicago.

32.  Gianamore knew or had reason to know that the information regarding the

upcoming Lincoin acquisition of Charter was nonpublic.
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33.  Prior to the public announcement and after substantial steps had been taken to
commence the tender offer involving Lincoln Electric and Charter, Gianamore communicated
nonpublic information regarding the Lincoln Electric acquisition of Charter to Evans.

34.  While in possession of nonpublic information regarding the Lincoln Electric
acquisition of Charter from Gianamore, on or about April 25, 2000, Evans purchased
approximately 8752 shares of Charter at a price of approximately $4.00 per share for a total of
approximately $35,031.

35.  Atoraround this time, Evans knew or had reason to know that it was improper for
Gianamore to communicate nonpublic information regarding the Lincoln Electric acquisition of
Charter to Evans.

36.  Following the public announcement regarding the Lincoln Electric acquisition of
Charter, on or about April 27, 2000, Evans sold his entire position of Charter at a price of
approximately $6.875 per share for a total of approximately $60,154.99, realizing a profit of
approximately $25,123.99.

IV.  The Hussmann Trade

37. On or about May 12, 2000, Ingersoll-Rand and Hussmann jointly issued a press
release announcing the execution of the merger agreement. Hussmann’s stock closed on May 12,
2000, at approximately $28.65 per share, up 15 points or approximately 113%.

38.  CSFB advised Hussmann on this transaction.

39.  Prior to the public announcement and after substantial steps had been taken to

commence the tender offer involving Ingersoll-Rand and Hussmann, Gianamore became aware
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of nonpublic information regarding the Ingersoll-Rand and Hussrna.ﬁn merger through the course
of his employment at CSFB Chicago.

40. Gianamore knew or had reason to know that the information regarding the
Ingersoll-Rand and Hussmann merger was nonpublic.

4]1.  Prior to the public announcement and after substantial steps had been taken to
commence the tender offer involving Ingersoll-Rand and Hussmann, Gianamore communicated
nonpublic information regarding the Ingersoll-Rand and Hussmann fnerger to Evans.

42, While in possession of nonpublic information regarding the Ingersoll-Rand and
Hussmann merger from Gianamore, on or about May 11, 2000, Evans made two purchases of
shares of Hussmann. The first purchase of approximately 7100 shares was at a price of
. approximately $13.25 per share for a total of approximately $ 94,088. The second purchase of
approximately 1800 shares was at a price of approximately $13.4375 per share for a total of
approximately $24,195.50,

43. At or around this time, Evans knew or had reason to know that it was improper for
Gianamore to communicate nonpublic information regarding the Ingersoll-Rand and Hussmann
merger to Evans.

44. Following the public announcement, on or about May 12, 2000, Evans sold his
entire position of Hussmann at a price of approximately $ 28.5625 per share for a total of

approximately $254,184.77, realizing a profit of approximately $135,901.27.
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V. The Burns Trade

45. On or about August 3, 2000, before the opening of trading of shares on the New
York Stock Exchange, it was publicly announced that Securitas would acquire Burns. On
August 3, 2000, Burns’s stock closed at approximately $21.109 per share, up 8 points or
approximately 60%.

46.  CSFB advised Burns on this transaction.

47.  Prior to the public announcement and after substantial steps had been taken to
commence the tender offer involving Securitas and Burns, Gianamore became aware of
nonpublic information regarding the Securitas acquisition of Burns through the course of his
employment at CSFB Chicago.

48.  Gianamore knew or had reason to know that the information regarding the
Securitas acquisition of Burns was nonpublic.

49.  Prior to the public announcement and after substantial steps had been taken to
commence the tender offer involving Sgcuritas and Burns, Gianamore communicated nonpublic
information regarding the Securitas acquisition of Burns to Evans.

50.  While in possession of nonpublic information regarding the Securitas acquisition
of Burns from Gianamore, on or about August 2, 2000, Evans made several purchases of Burns.
He purchased approximately 3000 shares of Burns at a price of approximately $13.75 per share
for a total of approximately $41,250. He purchased an additional approximate 1000 shares of

Burns at a price of approximately $13.625 per share for a total of approximately $13,633. He

10
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purchased an additional approximate 6000 shares of Burns at a price of approximately $13.5 per
share, for a total of approximately $81,013.

51. At or around this time, Evans knew or had reason to know that it was improper for
Gianamore to communicate nonpublic information regarding the Securitas acquisition of Burns
to Evans.

52.  Following the public announcement, on or about August 3, 2000 Evans sold his
shares at a price of approximately $21.0625 per share for a total of approximately $210,609.97,

realizing a profit of approximately $74,713.97.

COUNT1

Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C, §78j(b)] and
Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5] promuleated thereunder

53.  Paragraphs 1 through 52 are realleged and incorporated by reference herein.

54, During the relevant time period, Defendants Evans and Gianamore in connection
with the purchase and sale of securities, namely the securities of Jostens, Charter, Hussman and
Burns, and by the use of the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce and by the use
of the mails, directly and indirectly, employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, made
untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make
the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading, and engaged in acts, practices and courses of business which operated and would
operate as a fraud and deceit upon purchasers and prospective purchasers of the securities.

55.  As part of his conduct, Defendant Gianamore, in breach of his duty to CSFB and

11
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its clients, provided material, nonpublic information regarding transactions related to Jostens,
Charter, Hussman and Burns to Defendant Evans as described in Paragraphs 53 and 54 above.

56. As part of his conduct, Defendant Evans sold shares of Jostens, Charter, Hussman
and Burns securities while in possession of material, nonpublic information regarding Jostens,
Charter, Hussman and Burns securities and while he knew or should have known that the
information was obtained as a result of a breach of a duty to CSFB and its clients as described in
Paragraphs 14 through 51 above.

57. Defendants Evans and Gianamore knew or were reckless in not knowing the facts
and circumstances described in Paragraphs 53 through 56 above.

58.  Asaresult of the activities described in Paragraphs 53 through 57 above,
Defendants Evans and Gianamore violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C.
§78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5] promulgated thereunder.

COUNT 11

Violations of Section 14(e) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §78n(e)] and
Rule 14e-3 [17 C.E.R. §240.14¢-3] promulgated thereunder

59.  Paragraphs 1 through 52 are realleged and incorporated by reference herein.
60.  Prior to Defendant Gianamore communicating nonpublic information to
Defendant Evans, substantial steps towards commencing each of the tender offers had been

taken.

61.  Defendant Evans purchased securities in Charter, Hussman and Burns as described

above, while he possessed material, nonpublic information relating to each of the tender offers he

12
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received from Defendant Gianamore. At the time that be purchased securities in Charter, Hussman
~ and Burns, Defendant Evans knew or had reason to know that the information he possessed
concerning the securities of Charter, Hussman and Burns was nonpublic and had been acquired
directly or indirectly from an insider of the offeror or issuer, or someone working on their behalf.
62.  Asaresult of the activities described in Paragraphs 59 through 61, Defendants
Evans and Gianamore violated Section 14(6) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14e-3 promulgated

thereunder.

RELIEF REQUESTED

THEREFORE, the Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court:
L
Find that the Defendants Evans and Gianamore committed the violations alleged above.
IL
Grant a Final Judgment and an Order of Permanent Injunction, and Other Equitable
Relief (“Final Judgment™), in a form consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, enjoining Defendants Evans and Gianamore, their officers, agents, servants,
employees, assigns, attorneys and those persons in active concert or participation with them who
receive actual notice of the Fipal Judgment by personal service or otherwise, and each of them,
from, directly or indirectly, as principals or aiders and abettors, by the use of the mails or any
means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, engaging in the unlawful acts, practices and
courses of business described above, or any conduct of similar purport or object, in connection

with the transactions in the securities described in this complaint or any other security, including

13
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violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.8.C. §78j(b)} and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R.
§240.10b-5] promulgated thereunder.
IIL.

Grant a Final Judgment, in a form consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure, enjoining Defendants Evans and Gianamore, their officers, agents, servants,
employees, assigns, attorneys and those persons in active concert or participation with them who
receive actual notice of the Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise, and each of them,
from, directly or indirectly, as principals or aiders and abettors, by the use of the mails or any
means or instrumentali;cy of interstate commerce, directly and indirectly, in connection with any
tender offer, or a request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any fraudulent, deceptive, or
manipulative acts or practices by purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the
securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer, while in possession of material information
relating to said tender offer which information they know or have reason to know was acquired
directly or indirectly from a person engaging in the unlawful acts, practices and courses of
business described above, or any conduct of similar purport or object, in connection with the
transactions in the securities described in this comﬁlaint or any other security, including
violations of Section 14(e) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F.R.
§240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder.

IV,
Grant an Order requiring Defendants Evans and Gianamore to each disgorge all illegal

gains plus prejudgment interest.

14
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V.

Grant an Order requiring Defendants Evans and Gianamore to each pay to the

Commission a civil penalty pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §78u-1].

VL

Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principles of equity and the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and

decrees that may be entered or to entertain any suitable application or motion for additional relief

within the jurisdiction of this Court.

VII.

Grant an Order for such further relief as the Court may deem appropriate.

DATED: January 24, 2002

Respectfully submitted,

Tina K. Diamantopoulos
Illinois State Bar No. 06224788
Susan M. Weis

Peter K. M. Chan

Attorneys for Plaintiff

Securities and Exchange Commission
500 W. Madison Street

Suite 1400

Chicago, lllinois 60661

Telephone: (312).353-7390

15
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